Jefferson County Planning Commission
Agenda
March 28, 2022 Meeting

7:00 P.M. – Zoom Video Conference
NOTICE is hereby given to any and all persons that the following will be considered at a Public Meeting by the Jefferson
County Regional Planning Commission to be held on Monday, March 28th, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. via Zoom Video
Conference.
All reports will be posted online at https://www.jfcountyks.com/agendacenter (click on arrow next to Planning
Commission) no later than Wednesday, March 23rd.
To view or participate in the Zoom meeting, please request the meeting link by calling (785)403-0000, option 3, or
emailing dparks@jfcountyks.com. You will be provided with instructions and given the option to participate in a practice
meeting in advance.
The County will provide a method for individuals without access to the internet or a telephone to observe or
participate in the meeting from the Jefferson County Courthouse in the County Commissioners’ chambers. Advance
notice of attendance is required so that facilities can be organized accordingly. Please call (785) 403-0000 Option 3.
Face masks are strongly recommended at all times inside all County facilities.
To provide written public comment: Please send written public comment by 3 pm on Monday, March 21st:
correspondence electronically to dparks@jfcountyks.com, or mail to P.O. Box 628, Oskaloosa, KS 66066, or place it in
the drop box by the south entrance of the Courthouse. Comments placed in the drop box should be marked for the
Planning Commission.
Item 1:

CALL TO ORDER

Item 2:

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Item 3:

ROLL CALL

Item 4:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES – January 24th, 2022 Meeting

Item 5:

PUBLIC HEARINGS
HEARING PROCEDURE:
A.
B.
C.
D.
E.
F.

I.

Item 6:
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Staff Report Presentation
Commission Questions of Staff Report
Applicant Presentation
Public Comment (Proponent then Opponent)
Applicant Rebuttal
Commission Action

SUBMITTAL OF EXHIBITS FOR THE
RECORD:
A.
B.
C.
D.

Jefferson County Zoning Regulations
Jefferson County Subdivision Regulations
Jefferson County Comprehensive Plan
All Visual Aid Presentations with Aerial
Maps, Site Plans, and Plats
E. All Application Files in their Entirety
Including Staff Reports

PR2022-01 and Z2022-02: A request to consider a re-plat of the Lakeland Estates
Subdivision. This proposal is to reduce the number of lots from nine down to five, with the
smallest lot proposed being 5.33 acres. Also, a request to rezone lot 4 to Rural Residential, and
Lots 1, 2, 3, and 5 to Suburban Residential. Both of these requests are being brought by the
owner of record; Fitzgerald Park Condos, LLC of P.O. Box 1684 – Elizabeth, Colorado, 80107.
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC ON ITEMS THAT ARE NOT ON THE AGENDA
(Agenda Schedule Allowance: 30 minutes or 5 minutes per spokesperson)

Item 7:

OLD BUSINESS, GENERAL STAFF REPORT

I.

Comprehensive Plan – review joint meeting notes with BOCC on December 13, 2021 (deferred
from December 20, 2021) - DEFERRED TILL APRIL

II.

TA2021-01: Consider potential draft text amendment TA2021-01 to sections of the Zoning and
Subdivision Regulations pertaining to application requirements and Zoning Certificate/building
permit procedures. (Initiated March 22, 2021; deferred April 26, 2021; deferred May 24, 2021;
deferred June 28, 2021 – DEFERRED TILL APRIL

Item 8:

NEW BUSINESS

Item 9:

ADJOURNMENT

Protest Petitions: Any protest petition must be filed in the Office of the County Clerk within 14 days from the conclusion of the public
hearing held by the Planning Commission.

Page 2 of 2

Jefferson County Planning & Zoning
Oskaloosa, Kansas
UNOFFICIAL
UNOFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
Minutes of the Planning Commission
Meeting of January 24th, 2022
Item 1.

Call to Order

Item 2.

Approval of the Agenda

Secretary Scherer moved to accept the agenda as presented and Commissioner Benyshek seconded.
Votes were taken by Ayes and Nays as follows:
Paul
Johnson
Chairman

Gale
Rudolph
Vice Chair

DNV
Motion Passed 4-0
Item 3.

Stephen
Phillips

Tim
Benyshek

Tiffany
Asher

Vacant

Aye

Aye

Aye

Aye

--

Stephen
Phillips

Tim
Benyshek

Tiffany
Asher

Vacant

PRESENT

PRESENT

PRESENT

--

Roll Call
Paul
Johnson
Chairman
PRESENT

Item 4.

---

Matt
Scherer
Secretary

Gale
Rudolph
Vice Chair
ABSENT

Matt
Scherer
Secretary
PRESENT

Approval of the December 20th, 2021, meeting minutes.

Chairman Johnson asked if there were any corrections for the minutes. Secretary Scherer had some corrections to the
minutes. He then asked for a motion to approve the minutes. Commissioner Benyshek moved to approve the minutes
with the proposed amendments and Secretary Scherer seconded.
Votes were taken by Ayes and Nays as follows:
Paul
Gale
Matt
Stephen
Johnson
Rudolph
Scherer
Phillips
Chairman
Vice Chair
Secretary
DNV
--Aye
Aye
Motion Passed 4-0
Item 5.

Tim
Benyshek

Tiffany
Asher

Vacant

Aye

Aye

--

Public Hearing

Chairman Johnson explained the commission meeting procedures to the public and opened the public hearing.
Z2022-01: A request to consider a change in zoning district classification from noncompliant and
Agricultural to Rural Residential for 10 acres for an expanded lot to be created by boundary shift survey
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located at 5571 Butler Rd, Meriden, KS 66512. This request is brought by owners Gene and Karen Heinen
at the same address and will correct the noncompliant status of the existing lot.
During this time, staff asked who was here for the first case. The applicant’s agent, Jess Noll (surveyor for Landplan)
was present via Zoom. Paul Swank from the public was present via Zoom, also.
Chairman Johnson asked if anyone had ex parte communications with someone involved in the case or if a member
has a potential conflict of interest regarding this case. No one had.
Chairman Johnson asked staff to give their report. Staff gave their report. After their report, Chairman Johnson asked
the board if they had any questions for staff.
Secretary Scherer: Kelly, I apologize, but I missed your explanation of the history. Did you say that this was nonconforming because it existed prior to the regulations?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yes, that's correct. It was already an existing less than one acre lot before we adopted, before
that cutoff date in 1994.
Secretary Scherer: Thank you.
Chairman Johnson: Seeing no other questions by Commissioners at this point for staff then we will move to the applicant.
Is there a representative of the applicant on this Zoom call?
Jess Noll (Landplan surveyor) for Gene Heinen: Yes sir Mr. Commissioner, Jess Noll with Landplan Engineering out of
Lawrence. 1310 Wakarusa. Kelly pretty much sized everything up and did a good job of presenting.
Chairman Johnson: Do you have any other comments?
Jess Noll (Landplan surveyor) for Gene Heinen: Not at this time.
Chairman Johnson: Commissioners have any questions at this point for the applicant’s representative? So, what are the,
the applicant has obtained work orders to bring the driveways into compliance? Can you give us a little more detail on
that?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Are you asking me Paul or Jess?
Chairman Johnson: I guess the applicant’s representative.
Jess Noll (Landplan surveyor) for Gene Heinen: Yes, sir. Mr. Chair… apparently the current verbal (broke up over
Zoom)
Chairman Johnson: Can you speak a little closer to your mic, you're breaking up significantly?
Jess Noll (Landplan surveyor) for Gene Heinen: Alright, any better? Yes, or no?
Chairman Johnson: Yes. We'll work with it. We'll see how it goes.
Jess Noll (Landplan surveyor) for Gene Heinen: Okay. So, the current driveway entrance tubes are concrete and to my
understanding that does not meet Jefferson County Road and Bridge standards for tubes. So, the Road and Bridge
Superintendent recommended to remove and replace those concrete tubes with proper corrugated metal pipe or CMP pipe
and bring the driveway width to a standard 30-foot residential width.
Chairman Johnson: So, you have an agreement to have that done?
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Jess Noll (Landplan surveyor) for Gene Heinen: Yes, the client has purchased the tubes for the entrances and has got
with Road and Bridge and has work orders to have those tubes replaced in those entrances? Am I correct Kelly?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, because Road and Bridge actually does the work. So, they have the work order in so now
it's up to the County.
Chairman Johnson: So, between the two of you, between Kelly, and the applicant’s representative, we have that solved
or are in the process of having it solved?
Jess Noll (Landplan surveyor) for Gene Heinen: Kelly, correct me if I'm wrong. He's purchased the tubes. They're on
site. And he has the work order in with Road and Bridge.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I got a revised letter from Road and Bridge saying that we could proceed, that they got everything
they needed for us to proceed without any conditions of approval. That make sense, Paul?
Chairman Johnson: And what was your last statement, without conditions of approval? What do you mean?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Well, I mean, usually if I'm reviewing an application, it gets down to the final stages before you
are going to hear it and there's outstanding issues, I'll give you a recommended condition of approval that would be taken
care of before final approval, but we don't need that in this case.
Chairman Johnson: Okay. Any further questions by Commissioners at this point or for the applicant’s representative?
Seeing none, then I will ask if there is any one on the call that would speak in approval of this particular case? Seeing none,
I would ask if there's anyone on this Zoom call at this point that would like to speak in opposition to this particular case?
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): Does that include me Commissioner? Paul Swank from Topeka? Does that
include me? in the question?
Chairman Johnson: Are you opposed to this particular case?
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): Well, the reason I'm on the call is to try to seek a little bit of information about
what Mr. Heinen’s intent for usage of the land is. The 10 acres that he's proposing to change from agriculture to residential
is adjacent to the land that my parents owned and is currently in trust and that I am the executor for. So, I'm just trying to
seek information about what the intentions for the land usage is going forward. I know Mr. Heinen has a salvage business
on the property that he owns. Our concern is that if we're going from agriculture to residential, does that mean he's planning
to erect more housing on that particular 10 acres? Is he wanting to use it for commercial salvage use? We're just wanting
to seek some information. And unfortunately, Mr. Heinen is not on the call for me to ask directly what his intentions are. I
don't know if Mr. Noll has that information or not?
Chairman Johnson: I will ask the applicant’s representative at this point if they would address those questions?
Jess Noll (Landplan surveyor) for Gene Heinen: Yes, thank you, Mr. Commission Chair. So, Mr. Swank, Gene’s full
intention of rezoning this 10-acre parcel is to gift it to his granddaughter. That's it. He wants to give his granddaughter a
house and 10 acres. And in order to do that, in the boundary line shift, we had to do the zoning change from the noncompliant parcel which I think is helping the County for cleaning up a mess, so to speak, from a zoning standpoint, and
creating a 10-acre tract that he can then deed to his granddaughter from the trust. That's his intent.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): And I would just add that in Rural Residential zoning district or in any zoning district, only one
home is allowed per lot. And 10 acres is the minimum lot size in the Rural Residential district. So, they can't break it up
anymore with this zoning.
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): Okay.
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Chairman Johnson: And Kelly, they can't add other commercial uses without bringing it back before the Planning
Commission?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Only a home occupation, accessory home occupation. But they can't do a principal use as a
business under this zoning unless they come for a conditional use permit.
Chairman Johnson: Go ahead, sir.
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): Oh, okay. So, the land, the current noncompliant property used to belong to the
Henrys and so that particular lot was less than one acre?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): That's correct.
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): Okay. Is there still a residence? And you said there was a residence and an
outbuilding on that particular?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Looks like it? Yes.
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): Okay. So is the residence, the…. (Zoom call cut out) ….going to be raised? And
then new structures being built on the 10 acres? Is that the intent?
Jess Noll (Landplan surveyor) for Gene Heinen: No, that's not the intent, the existing structures that are there, to my
knowledge, that house that is currently in place on the property is habitable. So, I don't know of any plans of raising the
current house. I can't speak to the outbuildings. But to my knowledge, they're not going to raise the house. No.
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): Okay. So, the house on the property, current house on the property is, is a suitable
structure that someone could live in. And the intent is for the granddaughter to move into that particular residence at some
point in time?
Jess Noll (Landplan surveyor) for Gene Heinen: Well, if I'm not mistaken, I do believe it's being occupied as we speak.
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): Okay, um, I don't know if that's the case or not. So, I really don't know. I don't
know if Ms. Woodward would have any information about that or not?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I can show you pictures from the property card dated 2018 of the house. Did you say this was
next to your? Can you give us your address, by the way, for the record, Mr. Swank?
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): For our property, for the property that we're discussing now?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): For you.
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): Oh, for me, yes. I'm located, my address is at 2300 Southwest 36th Street, Topeka,
Kansas 66611. Again, the reason I'm on the call is because I'm the executor of the estate that is lying next to the Heinen
property. So that's, I'm like I said before, I'm just seeking information. I'm not trying, to try and ask questions, try to find
out what what the intentions are for changing the zoning.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Mr. Chair, do you want me to share the photo from 2018?
Chairman Johnson: Sure. Okay
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Can you see this now? Property card?
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): Yes.
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Kelly Woodward (Staff): And there's the outbuilding. There's the house. This is going back in time, but this is the most
recent.
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): Okay, looks very similar to what it's always looked like. So, there's really been
no changes to the structure from the external, from what I can see from the, from the photos. So apparently there's been
changes in regulations on how much land can be donated or willed to, or given to a, a relative? I know my dad did the same
thing for my brother; he gave him one acre. And so, my brother was able to build a house on that one acre, that's just south,
or excuse me, just north of my parents’ home. So apparently those regulations have changed from one acre to 10.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): No, there are no regulations about how much land you can sell. It's just that if you're going to
make it a 10-acre lot, which is what they're proposing to do, then it has to be zoned to the appropriate zoning district. So,
he's choosing to make it larger.
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): Okay, so he's choosing to give 10 acres to the granddaughter and not just one.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Right.
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): Okay. All right. All right. And as far as your, as far as his intent, he just wanted
to maintain the residential nature of the land.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Far as we know, there are no changes in use anticipated.
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): Okay. All right. That's very helpful. I really appreciate your just describing the
situation and explaining what the intents are. And I really appreciate Mr. Noll explaining some information as well.
Chairman Johnson: Is the acreage you're talking about north or south of the proposed development? You said you were
in the area, right?
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): Are you speaking to me?
Chairman Johnson: I'm sorry. Yes.
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): Well, our property is north of the Heinen property. And the, so the property that's
being proposed for change is in the very northeast corner of the Heinen property. And so, our land is just north, due north
of, behind the property line. So, the 10 acres is in the very extreme northeast corner of that property line of that property
80 acres that he owns.
Chairman Johnson: Okay.
Jess Noll (Landplan surveyor) for Gene Heinen: Mr. Chair if I may, I'm assuming that Mr. Swank means north of and
adjacent thereto. Am I right, Mr. Swank?
Paul Swank (2300 SW 36th St, Topeka): North of, north of the Heinen property and adjacent to the Heinen the property,
that’s correct, yes.
Jess Noll (Landplan surveyor) for Gene Heinen: Thought maybe that'd help.
Chairman Johnson: Okay. Is there anyone else on the call that would speak in opposition to this case? If not, then I'll ask
if there is anyone on this call that has a neutral comment about this case? Seeing none, then at this point, I will close the
public hearing and see if Commissioners have further questions for the applicant’s representative or for staff. Seeing none
at this point, then I will ask if Commission members have a motion on Z2022-01?
Commissioner Benyshek: Mr. Chairman, this is Tim here. I would recommend approval of Z2022-01 as presented.
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Secretary Scherer: I’ll second the motion.
Chairman Johnson: Are there any further questions by Commissioners at this point on this particular case? Seeing none
at this point, then all those in favor of the motion to approve that’s been seconded, please raise your hands.
Votes were taken by Ayes and Nays as follows:
Paul
Gale
Matt
Stephen
Johnson
Rudolph
Scherer
Phillips
Chairman
Vice Chair
Secretary
DNV
--Aye
Aye
Motion passed 4-0

Tim
Benyshek

Tiffany
Asher

Vacant

Aye

Aye

--

TA2021-03: Consider a text amendment to Article 3 of the Subdivision Regulations pertaining
to right-of-way dedication with Agricultural Lot Split applications (deferred from December 20, 2021).
During this time, staff asked who was here for the second case. Jess Noll ( Landplan) stayed on the Zoom call to
listen about the text amendment.
Chairman Johnson asked staff to give their report.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Okay, I'll share my screen. Alrighty, this is a public hearing to consider a text amendment to
section 3-106 of the Subdivision Regulations pertaining to Agricultural Lot Splits, as initiated by the County Commission
on November 22, 2021. It was deferred from the December 20, 2021, meeting. So, where we are in the process here, it's
been initiated, I've put together a draft in the staff report, with some options, three different options for you to consider.
And we're having the public hearing and possibly you'll have a decision this evening on a recommendation. So just to kind
of orient you here right-of-way dedication is triggered with land division applications in the County, and this would be
with Plats and Ag Lot Splits. It doesn't get triggered by the exempt splits like combinations or boundary adjustments,
because those are exempt from the Subdivision Regulations. But anything that is subject to the Subdivision Regulations
currently has to meet the right-of-way dedication requirement. So, Subdivision Regulations do prohibit approval of any lot
split where there's less street right-of-way than is required. And so, if there is less street right-of-way than required, it's
dedicated on that Ag Lot Split survey and in the Ag Lot Split agreement, where it's mentioned. The minimum right-of-way
dedication is also required on plats in a similar manner. So, this is that section within the Subdivision Regulations that
states you can't approve with less street right-of-way than required. And it also shows the minimum right-of-way
requirements, and you can see that they're based on road classification. So, for a local road, which should be the smallest
dedication required, it would be a total of 60-foot right-of-way. And that's on both sides of the centerline – the total is 60
foot. So, from the centerline to just one side, it'd be 30 foot minimum required. So, if we just look at an example of where
this star is located on the map, you can see that a parcel at the corner of those intersecting streets would be on rural minor
collector roadways, all three roads would be rural, minor collector roadways. And so, this map was adopted in the 2001
Comprehensive Plan, and it is the adopted guide for road classifications in the County. Now, the regulations do provide
that street classifications can be indicated in Comprehensive Plan, they can also be indicated in other standards as adopted,
or they may be determined by the Planning Commission and or County engineer. So right now, the only applicable road
standards we have for a guide is the Comprehensive Plan and then resolution 97-25 it has construction standards for public
roads, but no right-of-way requirements in there. So, if you were going to submit an application for an Ag Lot Split at that
location where the star is, technically, you would be required to dedicate so that the road would be 80 foot wide total. And
that means for your half, if you are on one side of the road, you would have to dedicate, there would have to be 40 foot of
right-of-way dedicated. Now, maybe there's already 20 foot on that side. So, you would have to dedicate the extra 20 feet
to make it 40 feet. But I'll show you this in some illustrations. But over the years, Zoning Administrators have typically
only required the minimum dedication to bring it up to that 60-foot total right-of-way as far as, at least with Ag Lot Split
applications, they've only made it as if everything is a local road and only require 60-foot total, which would be 30-foot
one side. So, this aerial shows three Ag Lot Splits that have happened in the area of that star in the previous slide. Number
three has not yet been mapped into the system because it was very recently. But you can see that jog, if you look at the
black line shows the right-of-way, you can see that it jogs by this parcel, because the right-of-way dedication is not yet
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shown on our map. So, in rural areas, land that's dedicated for public road purposes may remain in private ownership. The
front lot line for those private properties that front rural County roads is typically the centerline of the road. So, their
property line goes clear to the center of the road. And that may coincide with a section line as well. And in this slide, the
green shading shows you the centerline of those roadways and it also shows you the property boundary. So, the right-ofway is essentially an area that's adjacent to that front property boundary that's dedicated for use for public roads and utilities.
And property owners are not taxed for that land that’s shown in the right-of-way, so the tax map doesn't show the property
lines as extending to the center line. But most of the time, your surveys will show them extending to the center line. So
here on this slide from this 2008 Ag Lot Split, which is located in the center of that area I showed you, you can see that
they dedicated an additional 10 foot of right-of-way for public use with this Ag Lot Split application. And that brought it
to a 30’ total, because you can see there's 20 foot existing, they dedicate that additional 10 feet that brings it to the 30-foot
minimum right-of-way that's required in the Subdivision Regulations. And they did this on both roadways that applied to
this Ag Lot Split. This one is north, just north of that parcel, same two roadways, done in 2021. And you'll see again that
they dedicated that additional 10 foot for a total 30-foot right-of-way one side. This is one that was just done. You can see
now it's bounded by three different roadways; those are shown by the center lines indicated in green on the slide. And they
also dedicated that additional 10 foot of right-of-way on all those roads. So as far as a history of right-of-way dedication,
with Ag Lot Splits, I looked, I went back and looked at every single Ag Lot Split that has been done since the regulation
was adopted. Really the right-of-way dedications started occurring in 2004 but it wasn't really consistently applied until
2007. You should have a big table with all this information of all these Ag Lot Splits that was with your packet. So, the
existing road right-of-way at that time was typically 40 foot wide, and that's the total, so it'd be 20 foot on each side. And
typical dedication was an additional 5 or 10 feet to total that 30 feet requirement. So, in total, 91 acres of land has been
dedicated for right-of-way purposes as part of 211 Ag Lot Split applications today. So, when right-of-way was not
dedicated, it was usually because the right-of-way already met that minimum standard. Five different Zoning
Administrators have consistently applied this requirement for 60-foot minimum total right-of-way or 30-foot one side on
Ag Lot Split applications since 2004. So, this is the minimum required by the Subdivision Regulations. And, you know,
the Subdivision Regulations do require those larger right-of-way widths for the collector roadways. But this was not
generally enforced by other Zoning Administrators. So really, that Major Thoroughfare Plan Map and the Comprehensive
Plan has not been a consistent guide as far as the larger dedications for collector roadways. But it has been consistent for
local roads.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Commissioner Richard Malm has questioned whether the County can or should require this
dedication of land for public purposes, or whether the County should pay for any necessary right-of-way that's dedicated
for public use. I would just like to say that historic precedent and zoning enabling laws indicate that yes, with a rational
basis, the County can require lands to be dedicated for public purposes. It's consistent with case law. But one consideration,
that is a practical consideration, is whether there are valuable improvements that are existing in the area that's proposed to
be dedicated to the public. Say that there's a fence or electronic gate or something there and you can see in this illustration
on this slide, the dotted line shows the actual right-of-way that already exists by this parcel on Wellman Road, it's already
been deeded to the County. And you see that line with the x's along it, that is a fence that exists within that right-of-way.
So, you know, it doesn't say you can't have your fence in the right-of-way, but it just says that the land is potentially there
for public purposes for utilities or the roadway and if any construction has to occur in that area it can occur. And then, you
know, you may have to replace the fence do something about the fence. So, in these situations, if there is a valuable
improvement in the right-of-way, the County could replace the infrastructure, they could also pay the property owner for
the value of that improvement, or the Board of County Commissioners in that case could decline the acceptance of
additional right-of-way for that specific application for a specific reason so the County is not responsible for the value of
the improvement. So, there are those options within the code if a property owner has concerns and wants to appeal a specific
concern to the Board of County Commissioners. Ag Lot Splits are subject to approval of the Zoning Administrator – in
that case that would be me at the moment and I could not approve an application that does not meet those requirements for
right-of-way dedication. However, those applications can be denied and then appealed to the Board of County
Commissioners who could overturn my decision. Consistent application of the regulations is key, however, to continued
legitimacy of those regulations, so an administrative decision should only be overturned in very unique situations. A general
policy change would require amendment of that applicable regulation, rather than a case-by-case determination or appeal
every time. So, with that said, I've presented you with three options to consider as far as right-of-way dedication. And there
may be more, you might think of some more.
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If you want to do a general policy change, or if you support a general policy change to not require any additional right-ofway dedication with Ag Lot Split applications (and I'm saying that just because it's not really being questioned with plats,
it's only being questioned with Ag Lot Splits), then of course you would amend the Subdivision Regulations, or you would
recommend that they be amended. That is, however, inconsistent with 17 years of past practice, so strong findings of facts
should support that regulatory change, such as a study that indicates current right-of-way width are sufficient for future
needs, or that the requirement for right-of-way dedication has somehow become legally risky, in spite of the years of
practice.
Number two option would be to revise the recommended right-of-way width to a more conservative number. That will
reduce the amount of required right-of-way dedications while maintaining past practice that has that right-of-way
dedication with all land vision applications equally. So, this would avoid some issues of inconsistency while reducing the
amount of right-of-way required. This would be accomplished with a revision to the right-of-way widths shown in the
street standards of the Subdivision Regulations that I showed you back on this slide, several slides back. Right here. So,
the numbers at the bottom, we would just say, okay, well, maybe instead of 60 feet, for local roadways, we only need 50.
And for minor collectors may only need 75, or whatever. So, you can imagine that coming up with those numbers, you
would need something to base that on but certainly that could happen. And this strategy should be based on an engineering
or planning analysis of current and anticipated road network conditions in relationship to anticipated development that will
occur. And that would provide a basis for those requirements for reasonable infrastructure for the County contexts. You
could also research nearby jurisdictions, so you have some consistency in right-of-way widths across County lines. And,
you know, really, these studies are exactly what is meant to happen as part of the upcoming Comprehensive Plan update.
So that would include updates to the Major Thoroughfare Plan Map, which would in turn support the regulatory change
for those right-of-way widths. It would take longer to accomplish, but it would be a well-reasoned strategy.
And then your third operation option would be to recommend no change to the regulations and continue to require the
minimal right-of-way dedication per current regulations as consistent with past practice. Just to give you an example, if
you choose option one, this is an example of how you could recommend a text amendment that would make this not, the
right-of-way dedication not applicable to Ag Lot Splits. So, you can see in the approval guidelines, we would add the
caveat that excepting as provided in 3-106, no lot split shall be approved basically, if there's less street right-of-way than
required, and then when you go down to 3-106, it says the creation of one additional lot in the unincorporated portion of
Jefferson County on property zoned and used as agricultural shall be permitted without requiring either a rezoning or a plat
or additional right-of-way dedication. So that's where you would basically be saying, okay, this right-of-way dedication
does not apply to Ag Lot Splits. There are other ways you could probably do text amendments that would accomplish the
same thing. This is the one that was suggested by the County Attorney in discussions with the commissioners.
So, staff recommendation is to do option number two. And first reason is that it does not undermine your regulations, the
regulations would remain unchanged, providing continuity until the County can implement the required regulatory process
to amend the plan and then amend the regulations, having a strong factual basis to support the change. It also does not
undermine the Comprehensive Plan, which is intended to provide the rational basis for those Zoning Regulations. So, you
should, if you're going to change a regulation, you should make sure that the Comprehensive Plan corresponds in guidance,
so you have less legal risk of being challenged. It also accommodates some reasonable change. It provides an opportunity
to support policy changes with proper planning. And it may promote consistency of right-of-way dedication, meaning you
would still require, you know; it would still be triggered by Ag Lot Split applications and subdivision applications, it's just
that you may be able to dedicate a less amount of right-of-way if it's found that that's really all we need.
Option one is inconsistent with the Comp Plan and Subdivision Regulations and past enforcement, and option three may
not address the County Commission desire for a policy change. So, I've given you three different recommendations for
motions depending on what option you might choose.
• Option number one, you might recommend that the Board of County Commissioners revise the Subdivision
Regulations to exempt Ag Lot Split applications from having to meet the minimum right-of-way width requirement
or dedicate additional right-of-way to meet those standards.
• Option number two, the Planning Commission recommends that the Board of County Commissioners commission
a study of the road network to determine if the regulations pertaining to the minimum right-of-way widths should
be revised. The Planning Commission supports a continuation of the practice to require right-of-way dedication
with all land division applications based on findings in the staff report.
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•

Option number three, which is no change, the Planning Commission recommends no change to the current
Subdivision Regulations as consistent with past practice that requires all land division applications to meet the
minimum right-of-way width requirement on all adjacent roadways and dedicate additional right-of-way to meet
those standards if necessary.

So that is all I have in my presentation. Unless you have additional questions.
Commissioner Phillips: I have a question. On option two, is the proposal there to still treat Ag Lot Splits different than
plats?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Can you say that again?
Commissioner Phillips: In option two, are we still talking about treating the ag lots splits different than plats?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): No because the right-of-way widths apply to everything.
Commissioner Phillips: But with option one, it would be treated differently.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yes, because they only asked you to consider what should happen with the Ag Lot Splits.
Commissioner Phillips: And would there be a rational basis for treating Ag Lot Splits differently than plats?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Well, from my perspective, a lot of the development that occurs in this County occurs because
of Ag Lot Splits. We have quite a few applications happening all the time because it's a simpler process, but it still creates
more driveways along those roadways. And so, there's a rational basis that it is creating more traffic. And so really when
are you going to be able to get that right-of-way to meet the standards if you don't do it with Ag Lot Split applications,
because we don't get a lot of larger subdivision applications.
Commissioner Phillips: But isn't option one to treat Ag Lot Splits more leniently than plats?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yes.
Commissioner Phillips: So that's not rational, is it?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Right. You might say that.
Commissioner Phillips: Is the County willing to pay for a study to implement number two?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): They are, you and I, and all of you would be talking about the RFP for the Comp Plan update.
And I envision this study as taking place as part of that Comp Plan update, because I do think the transportation analysis
is a key part of that Comprehensive Plan update. I do think they're on board with it.
Chairman Johnson: Other questions by Planning Commissioners? Matt?
Secretary Scherer: Kelly, this is a question about your Wellman Road example for the dedicated right-of-way, placed a
fence line within the right-of-way. Private fence is in the right-of-way. Am I correct in assuming that the County could
destroy that fence at any time without compensation to the landowner?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I don't know that that's true.
Secretary Scherer: I'm pretty sure it is.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I know that you can, you can tear it down, but I don't know that you can't replace it.
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Secretary Scherer: It’s in the County right-of-way.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): But yes, not necessarily on County property but is in the portion of roadway dedicated for public
use. That's true. They could move it back. Like they could rebuild it, move it back.
Secretary Scherer: And actually, I believe the County would probably do that. But I suspect the County has the right to
just destroy it.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): It probably wouldn't be very politically popular.
Secretary Scherer: Oh, no, it definitely wouldn't be, nonetheless, I believe they have the right to do so.
Commissioner Phillips: And aren't most fences along roadways probably on the right-of-way?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Maybe, because as I said, the roadway widths were originally 40 foot as dedicated originally
and so most of the, a lot of those fences are probably old and maybe they're right there at that 40-foot mark.
Secretary Scherer: Right on the 40-foot, or 20-foot from the centerline mark. I know they are in my neighborhood; they
are 20 feet from the centerline of the road.
Commissioner Phillips: Yeah, here too.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): It's not like anybody is going to mess with those fences unless we have like a major project going
on, it's not likely that we're going to need to do anything with those fences. But that's why you need to look at the road
study to see well, are we really requiring too much? Maybe we are.
Secretary Scherer: Well, my concern is more than a fence is destroyed during a maintenance operation. I realize that
doesn't happen very often but occasionally there's maintenance going on our roads and fences are well within the reach of
the mowers that are trying to mow the ditches and the land next to it. It was a hypothetical question, but I think it has some
well, perhaps it's kind of where the Commissioner, County Commissioners are coming from.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): It may be that someone's complained about it and he's trying to address their complaint.
Chairman Johnson: Other comments by Planning Commissioners?
Commissioner Phillips: Well, number two seems to be the only realistic option.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Maybe I should share that again since I didn't provide those motions in your staff report.
Chairman Johnson: Kelly, your sense is the County Commissioners are good with this recommendation?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I believe the majority of them will be good with this recommendation, and I do think they support
the Comprehensive Plan in some form or fashion, to be determined.
Secretary Scherer: Kelly, I really wish Road and Bridge was here to talk to us about this. But do you have any idea of
how many kind of sawtooth arrangements do we have, where we have 20 feet of right-of-way, and we go along and then
we have 30 feet of right-of-way for 500 feet, and then we go back to 20 feet of right-of-way along the road.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): We're getting more and more as applications are occurring because as more development
happens, obviously then more right-of-way is dedicated, and you have more of those sawtooth scenarios where the rightof-way varies along the same road.
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Secretary Scherer: My concern is that, practically speaking, if you have that kind of sawtooth arrangement, I don't see
how Road and Bridge can actually work with that very well, they would pretty much have to work from the minimum
right-of-way that they have or provide everybody with a map of where the right-of-way changes every time we do.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): It is mapped. Yeah. And it's online.
Secretary Scherer: Do you provide it to the operators, the graders, and the mowers though? You can’t do that because
you don’t take care of that. So, I suspect that the mowers and the graders, just that they, whatever the minimum right-ofway is rather than trying to maintain everything that the County’s right-of-way consists of.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): That might be true. Yeah. They might just go to the fence wherever the fence is.
Secretary Scherer: And they might go beyond the fence as far as that goes. But I guess my concern is that dedicating these
right-of-ways, I'm not sure that there's a clear, rational reason to do so if the County cannot take advantage of the fact that
they own the right-of-way to perform road and bridge operation and maintenance.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): You know, and that's something that would be discovered during this comprehensive planning
process. So, you would expect your consultant to talk to Road and Bridge and look at the records and work that all out.
Commissioner Phillips: Well, it’s also for future use, isn't it?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yes.
Secretary Scherer: I'm sorry, Steve, I couldn't hear you.
Commissioner Phillips: It's also for future use.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): It is setting up for possible road expansions when traffic increases to the point you have to
improve roads.
Secretary Scherer: That’s part of the plan for having the right-of-way, but if you don't have the entire right-of-way, you
still can't expand the roadway till you obtain….
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Then you would have to buy it. You’d have to buy it if you had a pending project.
Secretary Scherer: Yeah.
Commissioner Phillips: And my understanding is even if the County has more right-of-way than it needs, it legally can't
use more right-of-way than it needs for maintenance purposes. It's like, I used to work for a railroad in the law department,
and railroads have much more right-of-way than they need for future use. But they aren't allowed to use it for anything
other than right-of-way purposes. I mean, if they don't have tracks on it, they have to let people farm it.
Secretary Scherer: Seems reasonable to me. I can see a purpose for the County having a right-of-way so that they can
actually, during construction or during significant maintenance or putting in a new culvert, there are all kinds of reasons to
have that. But you're not getting it if we don't have a consistent right-of-way along the roadway, the sawtooth
arrangement….
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Well, the sawtooth arrangement just happens because of the fact you can't just go to every
property owner at once and say, dedicate it right now, and the only thing we can do is have it triggered with development
unless we have a project, and then he will purchase right-of-way. But that's a process. That's an appraisal process, it costs
money. So, I think this is a benefit for the County when people dedicate consistently according to our regulations.
Commissioner Phillips: I was just saying I think in order to establish a reason for doing this, that future use should be
included as a reason for dedication.
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Secretary Scherer: I agree completely.
Commissioner Phillips: That was the only point I was trying to make.
Secretary Scherer: Yeah.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): So, you're saying that in the study, they should look at future anticipated development?
Commissioner Phillips: Yes. I think that's necessary in order to establish a reason for more right-of-way than is currently
being used.
Chairman Johnson: Further comments on this proposal at this point by Planning Commissioners? Are Planning
Commissioners comfortable in making a motion at this point in terms of the options before us?
Secretary Scherer: I got something I'd like to bring up.
Chairman Johnson: Go for it.
Secretary Scherer: I'm not sure how to explain this, Kelly. What if we propose that for an Ag Lot Split, that a right-ofway dedication to be required as the majority of the roadway right-of-way within a half a mile of the Ag Lot Split on that
side of the road to conform to the right-of-way on more than half of the roadway? That didn’t make any sense at all did it?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Can you explain that to me again?
Secretary Scherer: Well, if you have, let’s do it by examples, if you have a proposed lot split along a section line, a section
road, that the whole section road has 20 feet of right-of-way, then we would just say there's no reason to require additional
right-of-way because of the Ag Lot Split. But if 3000 feet of that right-of-way was already 30 feet, but it was only 20 feet
where the Ag Lot Split was, we would require the 30-foot right-of-way for the Ag Lot Split to attempt to conform to the
typical right-of-way that exists along the road.
Commissioner Phillips: But I don't think that expands the right-of-ways for when development occurs for future use,
which I thought was part of the point?
Secretary Scherer: Well, if we're, if we're going to the right-of-way that exists in conformance with the Comprehensive
Plan, that would be the, in my example, the 30 feet of right-of-way to conform to the Comprehensive Plan. But for some
reason, we never got 30 feet at the Ag Lot Split that's before Kelly at this moment, then she could say, well, you need to
give me 30 feet here. But if we've never done it anywhere along that roadway, then is there any reason to request it from
this one landowner, rather than just leaving it at 20 feet? I could draw a picture and it would be a lot clearer, I'm sure.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): And I understand what you're saying. You're basically saying if there's kind of a precedent in
the area, that development hasn't occurred, and people haven't required it, it hasn't, you know, changed from that 20 foot
for years, do we really need it? And right? Is that what you're saying?
Secretary Scherer: Well, not so much that do we really need it, but is it really fair to require this individual to dedicate
more than any of the neighbors have ever had to dedicate in the past, and would it accomplish anything for the County is
more of the point? If you have 300 feet of right-of-way that is 30 feet wide, and the rest of the mile is 20 feet wide, you
really haven't accomplished anything.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Most of the places where it hasn't been required is because development hasn't occurred, and
nothing has been triggered. But if you, if you look at the chart that I sent you, it really has been very consistent on making
people add that additional 5- or 10-foot right-of-way to make it 30 feet whenever there is an Ag Lot Split application, so
it's been consistent with applications. It's just that it's a big County, and you know, not everyone's done anything for years.
And so, there's a lot of land that still 20-foot right-of-way. But this would hopefully come out when they were looking at
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it in the study, and they'd be like, this has been this way for years. There's really no development happening here, maybe
we don't need to require more in this area. And then you could change the map, and then you'd go by the map that says
okay, in this area, we really only need that 40 foot, but in this area, we really want to bring it up to 30 or even 40 or
whatever. Does that make sense?
Secretary Scherer: I don't disagree with you. I think perhaps I'm looking at this as sort of a temporary thing until we
actually have the Comprehensive Plan done. I don’t know that the County Commissioners would look at it that way but
that's kind of the way I’m looking at it.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I mean, it'd be something that right now, without the regulations being changed, I would deny it
and then the property owner could take the case to the Board of County Commissioners and say, look, the right-of-way is
40 foot all along here and so why do you really need it? And then they would probably say, yeah, we don't need it. But I
have to require it. I am not authorized to not require it at this point.
Secretary Scherer: I understand. I guess what I'm proposing would allow you to in those situations where you don't think
it, or at least where we write it out, and it doesn't make sense to expand the right-of-way, because you could do it yourself
without it having to go to the Board of County Commissioners? It's not a very well thought out proposal. I'm sure there's
all kinds of holes in it.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I don't know if there is, I'm just thinking through it.
Secretary Scherer: I only thought about it for five minutes so I'm not sure.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): It can be that we could put a caveat in there that if a certain percent of the roadways within a
certain distance, you know, are the same right-of-way as this property, then, I'm not quite sure how that would be nonsubjective enough for an Administrative Approval. Like for things that are flexible, truly flexible usually comes to a higher
authority like you guys.
Secretary Scherer: Yeah.
Commissioner Phillips: But then if, if splits started happening along that stretch, they would never be widened? I mean,
I don't think, I would be opposed to that, because I think it precludes widening with future splits?
Secretary Scherer: I don't think it does because it's restricted to Ag Lot Splits. Now if it applied to plats, I would agree
with you completely. But since it's only Ag Lot Splits, which are very limited in their application.
Commissioner Phillips: But didn't Kelly tell us most development comes from Ag Lot Splits?
Secretary Scherer: I think she kind of handpicked that example where she had three in the same section. No offense,
Kelly.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): That’s true. But I just picked those so I could show you the consistency in that area.
Secretary Scherer: We have a lot of them that are not next to each other along the roadway.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah. They usually are scattered. I mean, I can show you, I can show you what the County looks
like as far as all the lot splits.
Secretary Scherer: It was my idea to get around, essentially what we're recommending in number two is to postpone a
decision for a year and a half.
Chairman Johnson: So, do you want to make that motion Matt?
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Secretary Scherer: At this point, no I don't, I'm not sure that it's that good of an idea. I was just trying to offer it as an
alternative.
Chairman Johnson: Well, do you want to delay you know your decision for a month for you to crystallize that motion.
Secretary Scherer: Really, what I'd like to do, frankly, is delay this for a month in hopes that Road and Bridge would
actually appear at the hearing to provide us information because I think we don't get the most important people involved
here and we don't have their opinion.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): The only statement that I ever get is, “I don't need any more right-of-way, it's fine, and if I need
more, I'll buy it.”
Chairman Johnson: So, let's….
Kelly Woodward (Staff): You can just think, you could count him as option number one.
Commissioner Phillips: Number two is not incompatible with that either. Number two might (inaudible).
Chairman Johnson: So as chairperson, you know, I'm looking for a motion on this. There are three recommendations by
staff. Do we have a motion for a particular one or do we want to delay this for a month and get more Road and Bridge
input?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Now we won't have a meeting in February because we don't have any cases. So, you get a break
for a month.
Commissioner Phillips: I don't. I don't think we're going to get, sounds like any more input from Road and Bridge. If
motions are open, I'd move number two.
Chairman Johnson: Okay. There has been a recommendation for recommendation number two? Is there a second for that
proposal?
Secretary Scherer: I'll second.
Chairman Johnson: Okay. Further discussion by Planning Commissioners on approving recommendation number two,
on TA202-03? Seeing none, then I will call the vote. All those in favor of the motion to recommend recommendation
number two from the staff, please raise your hands. Those opposed, seeing none.
Votes were taken by Ayes and Nays as follows:
Paul
Gale
Matt
Stephen
Tim
Tiffany
Johnson
Rudolph
Scherer
Vacant
Phillips
Benyshek
Asher
Chairman
Vice Chair
Secretary
DNV
--Aye
Aye
Aye
Aye
-Motion passed 4-0
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Item 6.
Public Comment: There was none.
Item 7.

Old business:
Comprehensive Plan – review joint meeting notes with BOCC on December 13, 2021
(deferred from December 20, 2021)

Chairman Johnson had some corrections for the transcription from the discussion between the Board of County
Commissioners and the Planning Commission on Dec. 13, 2021. Corrections were noted and corrected.
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Chairman Johnson: So, do the Planning Commissioners have other comments about forward motion on… Kelly
how public, I don't know how many of the Planning Commissioners have said, but obviously you've sent your
retirement letter to the County Commissioners. And now the County Commissioners have moved, have decided
to bring back Dustin Parks, as our Planning Administrator, starting in first of February? Is that when it happens?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): February 22nd. Yeah, that's correct. So, the former Zoning Administrator, Director,
Department head will be coming back.
Chairman Johnson: And Kelly, sorry, I don't know this, and I should know this, but is the Planning Administrator
the Community Development Director in Jefferson County?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yes.
Chairman Johnson: So, we don't have a separate Community Development Director in Jefferson County?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): No, I was supposed to be working on economic development as well. So, what I basically
recommended to them is let's make the department the Community Development Department. And we have the
Planning and Zoning division, and we have the Economic Development Division. I don't know if they'll change
that or if they're still following in that model. But when I applied, they were already calling it a Planning and
Zoning/Community Development Director.
Chairman Johnson: We had a halftime Economic Development Director for a while. That’s when we got the
strip club in in Meriden, well whatever. So, other comments by Planning Commissioners about how the meeting
went with the County Commissioners and those who listened in or read the notes and thoughts about going forward
at this point?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I mainly wanted you to have that as kind of a reminder of what they had heard before
you looked at the RFP because it did give a lot of guidance for the RFP.
Chairman Johnson: I thought the RFP was very well done. I thought you know you laid out the guidelines, you
laid out the goals for it. And, you know, the conjunction with the Compatibility Report you did comparing what
we had in the Comp Plan 2001 and how our Subdivision, you know, our Zoning and Subdivision Regulations
coincided and didn't coincide. And I think you've, you've laid tremendous groundwork for whatever consultant
ends up with this RFP. It's a great jumping off point.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I'm glad you think that will be helpful to them. I don't know if the Commission will want
to wait until Dustin starts to let him look at the RFP as well, and then get it sent out. Or if you guys make a
recommendation on this RFP, and I take it to them next week and I say, you know, if you think this looks good, I
can distribute it now before I leave. But if you, as a group, did feel it was in workable condition to send them as a
recommendation, I would take it to them on Monday. And if they want to wait, they'll wait.
Chairman Johnson: Thoughts by Commissioners on that?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): But as I said there will not be a Planning Commission meeting in February.
Secretary Scherer: Kelly, this just comes from my own experience doing RFPs, but has the County Attorney
reviewed this?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): No, no. That can be something we could ask him to do to or, you know, I could take it
to them on Monday and then they could direct him to look at it.
Chairman Johnson: Kelly, what's a practical, if you put an RFP on the street, is it a month, two, or three months?
What's the time frame for getting applications?
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Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, I would think you'd want to give them at least a month to respond and maybe
more like six weeks, maybe two months. Matt, you’ve been a consultant, you say two.
Secretary Scherer: Well, I didn't do this kind of work, but we always gave two for floodplain mapping. And
there's just a handful of people that do floodplain mapping and they already have their RFPs written or their
responses written to the RFP, they just have to see what County they're in. So, two months seems very reasonable
to me. But I don't know much about consulting firms that do this kind of work.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): When I was consulting you would see different amounts of timeframes. But the more
complex the project, the more time you should get them to respond. I think two months is good. I mean, you don't
want to give them so much time that you think, well, they're just procrastinating or, you know, you might know
that they're responsive too.
Secretary Scherer: Want them to know that you're serious about it.
Chairman Johnson: So, do you have a sense of how large the applicant pool may be?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): No, I think that if I put the question out with the Association of Counties in this area, I
should be able to get some pretty good sources for who I could distribute it to, suggestions. And actually, the
Kansas chapter of the American Planning Association probably can also give me a list or even the Missouri chapter.
There are probably Missouri firms that would do it if you're open to that. We can put the RFP on the American
Planning Association website and people from all over the place can respond as well. I think your RFP does
highlight Kansas experience.
Chairman Johnson: Yeah, I guess that was my question is how are the parameters on experience that makes the
most sense for Jefferson County?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Yeah, well, that might be something you want to look at, your criteria for evaluating
them. And that's on page 10 of the RFP and I used a 100-point scale. But you might want to see if you guys agree
with what I have there, because that's very important part of this RFP so that they know what your preferences are.
It starts out with professional qualifications and prior experience 25 points, project management and personnel
capacity 15 points, project understanding and approach 25 points, public input approach 25 points. So basically,
their understanding of the project which comes from their experience, but also their demonstration of their
experience, and then that public input approach, those would be the highest point criteria and then cost would be
only 10. But you're giving them the budget, you're telling them what your budget is. So that's kind of what my
thought process was there, and then the number I threw out there for the budget, which probably will get revised
or discussed, was, I can't even remember now, $185,000. And that would include them telling you basically, what
are their billing rates, so you know, you can compare apples to apples as far as how much work they think they're
actually going to do, how many hours they’d dedicate.
Chairman Johnson: Further comments by Commissioners?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Before it went out, that timetable would have to be filled out with months and dates.
Chairman Johnson: Right. Does it make sense for the planning, and we're not going to have a February meeting,
so do we want to fine tune this draft or where are we at with moving forward with the County Commissioners?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): I do know that Dustin did discuss the Comp Plan update with them, and he is also
stressed the importance of it, so I think there's continuity there.
Chairman Johnson: Well, the chairperson is open for a recommendation at this point as to what our motion would
be to the County Commission.
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Secretary Scherer: I hate to slow things up, but I think since we know Dustin is going to be Kelly's replacement,
just in fairness to him, he should probably get a shot at it so to speak.
Commissioner Phillips: I agree.
Secretary Scherer: He is the one that is going to have to do all the work even though that puts it off for a couple
months.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): So, you would put it back on the agenda in March?
Secretary Scherer: To be honest, I would leave it up to Dustin when to put it on the agenda, but March is fine
with me, but I don't know about if he will have had time to look at it all by then.
Chairman Johnson: Well, I don't know if as a Chairperson, I can suggest this, I don’t know what Robert's Rules
of Order are on this, but since we're not going to have a formal February meeting for that, should we use that
February meeting to work with Dustin and fine tune this?
Commissioner Phillips: I question whether he’ll be, he will have a lot to do coming in. March seems better to
me.
Chairman Johnson: How long was he with us? A couple years? We are not creating the wheel for Dustin at this
point. I don't know. I mean, I just I think we need to keep this progress moving.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Well, I don't, I'm not going to, you know, send it to him before he starts obviously so,
and I don't know what he would feel about having a meeting on February 28th after starting on the 22nd. And if
it's just a discussion, yea maybe.
Chairman Johnson: It could be a brainstorming meeting, it wouldn't, you know, wouldn't have to come to any
final decisions but I would like to see this progress continue. Well, so the Chairperson’s open to a recommendation
on what we need to do.
Commissioner Phillips: I move we table it till March.
Secretary Scherer: I second.
Chairman Johnson: There's a second to table this until March. Any other comments by Commissioners? Seeing
none, all those in favor of the motion to table the Comprehensive Plan RFP until March raise your hand.
Votes were taken by Ayes and Nays as follows:
Paul
Gale
Matt
Stephen
Tim
Tiffany
Johnson
Rudolph
Scherer
Vacant
Phillips
Benyshek
Asher
Chairman
Vice Chair
Secretary
DNV
--Aye
Aye
Aye
Aye
-Motion passed 4-0
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Item 8.

New Business:

Chairman Johnson: Is there anything in new business that's not listed on this agenda Kelly? I know we have a
deferral on the bylaws amendment. So, I'm skipping that. Are there any other comments you have?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Well, let's see. Last month’s cases, they followed all your recommendations, they did
deny the Lash Ivory Tower Estates subdivision. They did receive public comment, there was a valid protest petition
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on that as well. So, it would have taken all of them to overturn your decision. And they approved all the rest of
them for your recommendation. You may be seeing a revised development plan for the McPherson construction
demolition landfill that maybe some of you were here for. Evergy wants to do a lay down yard on that site as well,
which is a temporary basically construction yard for them to have their transmission equipment and everything
they need to work on those power lines for a couple years.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): And then Washington Estates subdivision has submitted their road plans for us to take
a look at, and they said once they get the review comments, the first review comments, they'll submit their final
plat for approval. So that will also be coming down the line. Erin, can you think of anything else? Ag Lot Splits
have slowed down a little bit at the moment, so that's good. We are still getting inquiries.
Chairman Johnson: Okay, well, any other items for the good of the Planning Commission tonight?
Secretary Scherer: I’d like to ask Kelly a quick question. My memory is terrible Kelly, but what, could you
summarize TA2021-01 in two sentences because I don't remember it at all.
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Whenever they were, the Board of County Commissioners were discussing whether or
not we require proof of water for Ag Lot Split applications, and it was decided that we don't, the County Attorney
recommended that we look at requiring the information at time of building permit. Well, we don't actually do that
at time of building permit.
Secretary Scherer: Okay. I remember now. Thank you.
Chairman Johnson: Any other items for the good of the Planning Commission tonight?
Kelly Woodward (Staff): Other than to say I've enjoyed working with all of you. I think you're a great team. I look
forward to seeing what you come up with for the Comprehensive Plan. I'll probably be at some of your sessions,
public input sessions.
Chairman Johnson: We'll try and drag you in Kelly if we can. So, do I have a motion for adjournment?
Commissioner Benyshek moved to adjourn the meeting. Secretary Scherer seconded. All said aye.
Item 9.

Adjournment – 8:40 PM
Minutes taken by:

___________________________________
Erin George

Approved:

___________________________________
Date

Chairman:

___________________________________
Paul Johnson

Secretary:

___________________________________
Matt Scherer III
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PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT
MEETING DATE: March 28th, 2022
PREPARED BY: Dustin Parks, CFM

AGENDA ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING I

PR2022-01 and Z2022-02: A request to consider a re-plat of the Lakeland Estates Subdivision. This proposal is to
reduce the number of lots from nine down to five, with the smallest lot proposed being 5.33 acres. Also, a request
to rezone lot 4 to Rural Residential and Lots 1, 2, 3, and 5 to Suburban Residential.
Date of Application: 02-17-2022
Type of Request: Replat and Rezoning
Owner/Applicant: Fitzgerald Park Condos, LLC
Address: P.O. Box 1684, Elizabeth, Colorado, 80107
General Location:
Southwest Corner of Ferguson Rd and 118th
CAMA #:
Existing Zoning:

Existing Land Uses:
Lot Size:
Notification:
Floodplain:
Roads Report:
Water:
Wastewater:
Signage:
Prior
Application/History:

044-135-21-0-00-00-001.02-0
Site:
RR
North: AG
East:
RR and AG
South: RR
West: SR and AG
Site:
Agricultural/Existing Subdivision
North: Farm homesite
East:
Residential
South: Farm homesite
West: Farm homesite and residential
35.47 acres
Published and notified as required
None
See attached letter from Jefferson County Road and Bridge
See attached letter from Rural Water District No. 7
See attached letter from the Jefferson County Health Department
None
Approved Plat from 1978

EXISTING CONDITIONS:
The subject property consists of nine previously platted lots and one 2.68 parcel currently zoned as Suburban
Residential. There has been no development on this property, and it is presently in vacant/agricultural use.
APPLICATION HIGHLIGHTS:
The re-plat of Lakeland Estates proposes to reduce the number of buildable parcels on the property by half.
Presently, there are nine lots within the subdivision and one parcel outside the subdivision’s boundaries for a total
of ten lots. The proposed changes would bring the total of number of buildable lots down to five, with each having
access to a county road, rather than access to a private interior cul-de-sac as is currently platted. The proposed
acreage, and zoning, for each lot is as follows.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
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5.33 acres with SR zoning
5.46 acres with SR zoning
5.57 acres with SR zoning
10 acres with RR zoning
9.11 acres with SR zoning

CONSISTENCY WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:
The approximately 35.5-acre property is not within the
“Ag Enhancement” area. It does not contain any areas
of “Known Sensitive Habitat”. The property is entirely
within a view shed (light green at right.) The
designations associated with view corridors are
intended to be used in evaluating urban development
that is denser than what is proposed. The plan offers
guidance for Development Standards in the View
Corridor and View Shed areas, suggesting that
development plans be reviewed with consideration of
the extent to which the structures, roads, driveways,
open space, and other public and private
View shed (light green) in the vicinity of Ferguson Rd
improvements enhance the views of broad ridges,
and 118th as well as potential wildlife areas of timber
open grasslands, major creeks and valleys, rugged
bluffs, steep ravines, timberland, and sites with (blue dotted area).
surrounding hills. These lots will remain largely open
space with rural residences and accessory structures. While the
potential addition of 5 additional houses in the area would change
the view, it is less detrimental than the potential for ten additional
homes, which the property could develop as the property is
platted presently. The Plan does not define the elements of rural
character that establish a sense of place, so this is subject to
interpretation.
118th Street is indicated as an “other minor collector” paved
county road on the Jefferson County Major Thoroughfare Plan.
This equates to a minimum total of 80’ of ROW per the Subdivision
Regulations (40’ on each side) and the plat application dedicates
this much or more. Ferguson Rd is indicated as a rural major
collector paved County Rd. This equates to a minimum total of
100’ of ROW per the Subdivision Regulations (50’ on each side). The
plat includes a total of 70’ of ROW dedication (one side) and thus is
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and regulations.
INFRASTRUCTURE, TRAFFIC AND OTHER CONSIDERATIONS:
The Road and Bridge Department indicates that additional
entrances are possible on both 118th St and Ferguson Rd pending
review.
Water for the lots will be supplied by Rural Water District #7 (see
attached letter) following an engineering study per lot, and any
upgrades that may be needed. Wastewater will be managed per
private septic systems. Per the Health Department letter attached,
the space available and the soil profiles indicate that septic systems
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are viable and can meet all required setbacks from the new property lines. The Department’s communications
indicate that there should be no problem installing wastewater systems on all lots. Utility easements are provided
as consistent with applicable regulations.
STAFF ANALYSIS – REZONING APPLICATION:
ARTICLE 30 REZONING FACTORS:
a. Whether the change in classification would be consistent with the intent and purpose of these regulations;
Staff Comment: The Suburban Residential District is “to provide for the platted development of low-density
residential neighborhoods that retain the character of the basically rural area and yet allow an influx of
residential development. This district is limited to those areas of Jefferson County where adequate water,
sewage disposal, and other infrastructure presently exists or may be approved outside such areas only when
adequate water, sewage disposal, and other infrastructure, as well as the delivery of support services, can
be demonstrated and proved to the satisfaction of the County.” An approvable plat is evidence that this
location can meet all development requirements. Both Rural Residential and Suburban Residential zonings
exist on the subject property and within 1 mile of the subject property.
b. The character and condition of the surrounding neighborhood and its effect on the proposed change;
Staff Comment: Other platted Suburban Residential (SR) parcels exist within one mile of the subject
property. The Peaceful Scenic Acres subdivision to the west as well as the Boone Subdivision to the south.
While not zoned suburban residential, Lakeshore Estates is roughly 1 mile south on Ferguson rd. as well. This
proposal is consistent with the character and condition of the surrounding neighborhood. No detrimental
impact is anticipated.
c. Whether the proposed amendment is made necessary because of changed or changing conditions in the
area affected, and if so, the nature of such changed or changing conditions;
Staff Comment: The proposed amendment is necessary to achieve the applicant’s goals for the property,
but is also consistent with changing conditions supporting more dense development near commuter
corridors. This development is consistent with emerging development patterns.
d. The current zoning and uses of nearby properties, and the effect on existing nearby land uses upon such a
change in classification;
Staff Comment: The change in classification is not expected to have a detrimental impact on adjacent
agricultural and residential land uses. With the subject property already having been approved for a nine lot
subdivision in 1978, this proposed change would bring the property A diverse range of residential districts
and agricultural uses exist in the area currently.
e. Whether every use that would be permitted on the property as reclassified would be compatible with the
uses permitted on other property in the immediate vicinity;
Staff Comment: Every permitted use would be compatible with and similar to adjacent properties.
f.
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The suitability of the applicant’s property for the uses to which it has been restricted;
Staff Comment: The subject property is suitable for the rural residential and suburban residential uses to
which it has been restricted, and is also suitable for those same residential uses that are permitted in the
proposed district.

g. The length of time the subject property has remained vacant or undeveloped as zoned; provided, the use
of land for agricultural purposes shall be considered as a viable use of the land and not be considered as
allowing the land to be vacant or undeveloped;
Staff Comment: While the property has had agricultural uses, and those uses mean that the property is not
to be considered vacant, a majority of the property exists in a platted subdivision that was approved in 1978,
and no development has taken place within the bounds of that platted subdivision.
h. Whether adequate sewer and water facilities and all other needed public services including transportation,
exist or can be provided to serve the uses that would be permitted on the property if it were reclassified;
Staff Comment: As discussed previously, adequate facilities and services are available to serve anticipated
uses.
i.

The general amount of vacant land that currently has the same zoning classification proposed for the
subject property, particularly in the vicinity of the subject property, and any special circumstances that
make a substantial part of such vacant land available or not available for development;
Staff Comment: Most SR residential parcels in the vicinity are developed. Development of these parcels is
subject to market demand for small-lot residential development in a subdivision versus private development
along paved vehicular corridors.

j.

The recommendations of permanent or professional staff;
Staff Comment: Staff recommends approval of the application as proposed.

k. Whether the proposed amendment would be in conformance to and further enhance the implementation
of the Comprehensive Plan;
Staff Comment: The proposed amendment is in conformance with the implementation of the
Comprehensive Plan.
l.

Whether the relative gain to the public health, safety, and general welfare outweighs the hardship imposed
upon the applicant by not upgrading the value of the property by such a reclassification; and,
Staff Comment: The gain to public health, safety, and general welfare does not outweigh the hardship
imposed by not upgrading the value of the property by the rezoning. The proposed re-plat would reduce the
number of lots of a previously approved plat, as well as increase the lot sizes.

m. Such other factors as may be relevant from the facts and evidence presented in the application.
Staff Comment: None.
STAFF ANALYSIS – FINAL PLAT APPLICATION:
Staff finds that the Final Plat is in substantial compliance with the Preliminary Plat. Existing streets are consistent
with the Comprehensive Plan and with applicable street standards of the Jefferson County Subdivision Regulations,
and the ROW dedication is consistent with plans and regulations. All applicable lot standards are met and all lots
include the prescribed utility easements. No public improvements are proposed.
Our office received multiple phone calls (see attached phone log) as well as a written letter with signatures of
property owners (both within and outside of the notification area). That letter is attached as well. The letter
suggests that those who signed the letter would be okay with the nine-lot subdivision as it only allows for access to
Ferguson.
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ATTACHMENTS:
A. Preliminary Plat
B. Final Plat
C. Google images
D. Notification map and letter
E. Zoning map
F. Floodplain map
G. Rural Water District letter
H. Jefferson County Health Department letter
I. Road and Bridge Department letter
ACTION:
After holding the required public hearing, the Planning Commission shall prepare a recommendation to do one of
the following:
1. Approve the applications based on the findings of the staff report.
2. Approve the applications with conditions or stated modifications to the Plat as deemed necessary to carry
out the spirit and intent of the applicable regulations.
3. Deny the applications with specific findings of fact.
4. Continue the applications to allow further analysis.
EFFECT OF DECISION:
The proposed Rezoning, if approved by the County Commission, shall become effective upon publication of the
adopting resolution. The transfer or sale of any tract or parcel of land located in a plat approved by the County
Commission that has not been recorded with the Register of Deeds is prohibited. If approved, the final plat shall be
recorded and filed with the Register of Deeds of Jefferson County, Kansas after approval of the final plat by the
County Commission as required by State law. If denied, the property owner still retains development rights of the
nine-lot subdivision as it was approved prior to the adoption of any Vestment of Development Rights regulations.
RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the applications as proposed.
Recommended motion:
After review of application Z2022-02, a Zoning District Amendment (Rezoning) application, and PR2022-01, a Final
Plat application, for the re-plat of the Lakeland Estates subdivision located on the southwest corner of 118th St and
Ferguson Rd, and staff report dated March 28th, 2022, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the
applications as proposed, and recommends the Governing Body accept dedication of rights-of-way and easements.
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JEFFERSON COUNTY 300 Jefferson St Toll Free: (844) 679-0748
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT P.O. BOX 628 Phone:(785)403-0000
www.jfcountyks.com/planningandzonine Oskaloosa/ KS 66066 Fax: (785) 403-0783

Date of Notice: 2/28/2022
Dear Property Owner:
NOTICE is hereby given to any and all persons that the following will be considered at a Public Meeting by the
Jefferson County Regional Planning Commission to be held on Monday, JVtarch 28th, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. via
Zoom Video Conference.

22

All reports will be posted online at https://www.jfcount</ks.com/agendacenter (click on arrow next to Planning
Commission) no later than Wednesday, March 23rd.

-2

8-

To view or participate in the Zoom meeting, please request the meeting link by calling (785)403-0000, option
3, or emailing dparks(%jfcountvks.com. You will be provided with instructions and given the option to
participate in a practice meeting in advance.

ou

t2

The County will provide a method for individuals without access to the internet or a telephone to observe or
participate in the meeting from the Jefferson County Courthouse in the County Commissioners' chambers.
Advance notice of attendance is required so that facilities can be organized accordingly. Please call (785)
403-0000 Option 3. Face masks are strongly recommended at all times inside all County facilities.
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To provide written public comment: Please send written public comment by 3 pm on IVIonday, IVIarch 21st:
correspondence electronically to dparks(%ifcountyks.com, or mail to P.O. Box 628, Oskaloosa, KS 66066, or
place it in the drop box by the south entrance of the Courthouse. Comments placed in the drop box should be
marked for the Planning Commission.
PR2022-01 and Z2022-02: A request to consider a re-plat of the Lakeland Estates Subdivision. This proposal

ic
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ot

is to reduce the number of lots from nine down to five, with the smallest lot proposed being 5.33 acres. Also, a
request to rezone lot 4 to Rural Residential, and Lots 1, 2, 3, and 5 to Suburban Residential. Both of these
requests are being brought by the owner of record; Fitzgerald Park Condos, LLC of P.O. Box 1684 Elizabeth, Colorado, 80107.

bl

You are receiving this letter in compliance with the Kansas State Statute 12-757 and in accordance with Article

Pu

30-102 of the Jefferson County Zoning Regulations, which requires notice be given to "...all owners of record of
lands located within at least 1,000 feet of the area proposed to be altered. ..."
Please be aware that attendance at the public hearing is not limited to those individuals who have received copies
of this notice. If you know of any neighbor or other potentially affected property owner who did not receive a
copy of this notice, it would be appreciated if you would inform them of this public hearing.
The Planning Commission may continue consideration of this matter at the conclusion of the public hearing to a
future date without further notice.
Respectfully,

Dustin Parks, CFM Erin George
Community Development Director Planner II
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1212 Walnut Street
Oskaloosa, KS 66066-4200
(78S) 403-002S
Public Health Fax
(78S) 863-2652
Home Health & Hospice Fax
(785) 863-3323
jeffersoncountyhealth .com

r'Jefferson
~ ~JC O U N T Y
HEALTH DEPARTMENT
HOME HEALTH & HOSPICE

February 17, 2022

American Surveying
Steve Tufte
7531 U. S. 59 Hwy
Oskaloosa, KS 66066

"·
d

RE:

Environmental Consult
Fitzgerald Park Condos, LLC
Ferguson Rd. , Ozawkie, KS 66070
Lakeland Acres, Lots 1 - 9 (21-09-18)

The Jefferson County Health Department received a request for an Environmental Consult to
readjust property lines at the above reference development into 5 lots.
The soils on Lot 1 (5.33 acres) and Lot 2 (5.46 acres) consist of the Martin Series. Martin soils
are moderately well drained, and permeability is slow. There should be no problem installing
wastewater systems on these lots and meeting all the required setbacks.
The soils on Lot 4 (10 acres) and Lot 5 (9.11 acres) consist of the Vinland Series. Vinland soils
are somewhat excessively drained, and permeability is moderate. Concerns with these soils
would be the depth of rock. There should still be no problem installing wastewater systems on
these lots and meeting all the required setbacks.
The soils on the remaining lot, Lot 3 (5.57) consist of both Martin and Vinland Soils. The
Vinland soils are mostly on the north side of this lot. There should be no problem installing a
wastewater system on this lot and meeting all the required setbacks.

If you have further questions, please feel free to contact me.

l

Casey W.
irns, Environmental Specialist
Jefferson County Health Department
CK:kh

My Files/ Letters/consu It. !tr. wpd
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Jefferson County Health Department
1212 Walnut Street Oskaloosa, KS 660664200
Phone: (785) 403-0025 Fax: (785) 863-2652

RECEIPT

Sr.

Receipt No.:

REC0013194

Received From :

Fitzgerald Park , Condos , Lie (PT00008030)

Amount:

~'$_ _ _
2_00_.o_o~j (In words) j~T_w_o_H_u_n_d_re_d_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _~

Payment Type:

Check

Reference:

3470

Note:

Environmental Consult paid by American Surveying

Received For:

Health Department, Jefferson County

Date

1 02/17/2022

Page 1 of 1
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Date:

Received By:

Description

Procedure

DIAG/CHK

Consultation : Individual Property
Owner

SAN60

N0O.00

02/17/22

K. H.

Amount

Paid Amt

200 .00

200.00

200.00

Total:

200.00

Total adjustment:

200.00

Balance:

$0.00

Print Date : 02/17/2022 01 :08 pm
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March 12, 2022

Jefferson County Community Development
300 Jefferson St
P.O. Box 628

Oskaloosa, KS 66066

Re: Response to Notice dated 2/28/2022
PR2022-01 and Z2022-02
Re-plat of the Lakeland Estates Subdivision

As property owners in Jefferson County we do hereby request that the pending application made to
re-plat Lakeland Estates Subdivision located at 118th and Ferguson be denied by the Jefferson County
planning and zoning on the following grounds.

1. As land owners in Jefferson County we feel it is imperative that land owners be aware and

understand the zoning and platting of their land and do not expect Jefferson County Zoning and
Planning to change or re-plat a property in order to accommodate their desires or needs, with

the exception of there being no objection by other land owners in close proximity of the
property in question. In this case there is unanimous objection to this re-plating request by all
land owners in the general proximity as well as other land owners in Jefferson County who don't

want to see a precedent set for multiple homes or drives from a single property. While in this
case we understand it is platted for multiple homes it does have a single drive from the main
road.

Allowing the re-plating of this property may set a precedent for future re-plat request.

2. While we are not objecting to the building of homes on this property one of our major
objections is the additional drives off of 118th street which is frequently used by farm equipment
as all of the propertiesWestofFerguson are either farm ground, pasture and or livestock
production.

It is our understanding due to restrictions by the NRCS office that any tree removal, drain tube
installations or other types of work done near or around the existing creek which drains into
Lake Perry would prohibit the installation of drives to at least one of the proposed properties.
The adjacent land owner has been told he is not allowed to do work or install a tube to the same
creek for better access to his property.

The building of homes or the reduction of lots could still be accomplished with the one entrance from
Ferguson as shown on the current drawing and as purchased.

Signature pages attached
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Signature page of those in close proximity and heirs to their properties
Jefferson County Community Development

300 Jefferson St
P.O. Box 628

Oskaloosa, KS 66066
Re: Response to Notice dated 2/28/2022
PR2022-01 and Z2022-02
Re-plat of the Lakeland Estates Subdivision
The following are those that are requesting the Jefferson County Planning and Zoning deny the request for the re-plat.

Name (PRINT) Signattp?e Address

/1^\/ Kr6\ ^'- ^y^— 1 /<> K^n $^ fVi^C . ^Z^LC^K, |<5 Gfo)^

Ga'i^ T^rt^ _l.'7Sc<^ ' yL^-^tL^ _10:^1 7^ St 6-2cu^^ ^-$ ^Go'7o
i^J TT le( rcF^sr _^'^^^/^'A^-^^^ _i^^ F^r^w, ^^ C^^UQ/O^^L l^f ^0^>
-S I." S a -A 'K^ CL ivi ^) f/ _4!-^ ^ ..<-^c ^ /\./l.^.^u^—.- _I 3. c^ /S ^ "^ -€• r^. c > c :\ /ci d Oc? K A {^ ci s <$ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ (/ ^
SJ

/,^

;,

I

ij-r^ r^c, ^< ;;---^:.x /r /^-^. ^ ''.'-. ~\. ^^/---.- f-;<: c:"^.,^^
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^

\^,./'

)^.

^'.L.^

J-^v-^ }-}^\.}'ry^ •.) ]c- ^ ^ ,)"fv / _[^
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Signature page
Jefferson County Community Development
300 Jefferson St
P.O. Box 628

Oskaloosa, KS 66066
Re: Response to Notice dated 2/28/2022
PR2022-01 and Z2022-02
Re-plat of the Lakeland Estates Subdivision
The following are those that are requesting the Jefferson County Planning and Zoning deny the request for the re-plat.

Name (PRINT) Signature Address
^ct^e-^-e T /I/e<^,^i^ _/^L^-eA)^?. l^^n^^^ _^ ooo ^ l ^o~^ 5-h 0 ^^ ^J^ <e y

D^ ^^iS /l A^. ^^.A^ y/^^<-4^ X. }/L^— _/^&:t- 77<?yj^r ^^N^^/G
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Signature page of those in close proximity and heirs to their properties
Jefferson County Community Development

300 Jefferson St
P.O. Box 628

Oskaloosa/ KS 66066
Re: Response to Notice dated 2/28/2022
PR2022-01 and Z2022-02
Re-plat of the Lakeland Estates Subdivision
The following are those that are requesting the Jefferson County Planning and Zoning deny the request for the re-plat.

Name (PRINT)

Address

Signatuje

/6^y /-/^/J.^ ffr Osf^o^/cs
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/?^^ K ^/A/^V
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Signature page of those in close proximity and heirs to their properties
Jefferson County Community Development

300 Jefferson St
P.O. Box 628

Oskaloosa, KS 66066
Re: Response to Notice dated 2/28/2022
PR2022-01 and Z2022—02
Re-plat of the Lakeland Estates Subdivision
The following are those that are requesting the Jefferson County-Planning and Zoning deny the request for the re-plat.

Name (PRINT)

S?n:\^ SVe^Se^ (v\^\<^

t^f^e i4v-^s OTfar)

Address

Signature

Rn^jf

t4C ivre<> ^n yz2^ ^0,^
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Signature page of those in close proximity and heirs to their properties
Jefferson County Community Development

300 Jefferson St
P.O. Box 628

Oskaloosa, KS 66066
;/
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Re: Response to Notice dated 2/28/2022
PR2022-01 and Z2022-02
Re-plat of the Lakeland Estates Subdivision
The following are those that are requesting the Jefferson County Planning and Zoning deny the request for the re-plat.

Name (PRINT)

'Tltdilon ^- ^mcLf ^6^

^

Address

Signature
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Signature page of those in close proximity and heirs to their properties
Jefferson County Community Development

300 Jefferson St
P.O. Box 628

Oskaloosa, KS 66066
Re: Response to Notice dated 2/28/2022
PR2022-01 and Z2022-02
Re-plat of the Lakeland Estates Subdivision
The following are those that are requesting the Jefferson County Planning and Zoning deny the request for the re-plat.

Name (PRINT)
3^ r\ ^ '~c^^n</'\ <~^ '-S c'\\o vj^ic^r

^

cvv\
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Signature
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^

Address
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Signature page of those in close proximity and heirs to their properties
Jefferson County Commimity Development
300 Jefferson St
P.O. Box 628
Oskaloosa/KS 66066
Re: Response to Notice dated 2/28/2022
PR2022-01 and Z2022-02
Re-plat of the Lakeland Estates Svbdlvlsion
The following are those that are requesting the Jefferson County P}armmg and Zoning deny the request for the re-plat

Name (PRINT)

Address

<elly Ktfkham

1,663 Road 14, Hygoton, KS S7951 (prop owner at 11690 Fergyson Rdi
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Memo
To:

Notes for Case PR2022-01 and Z2022-02

From:

Dustin Parks, CFM

Date:

varies

RE:

Calls regarding above mentioned case

02-28-2022

•
•
•
•

03-01-2022
03-03-2022

•

3:37 John Schonfeldt called for info and is opposed.

•

9:19 Sent link to agenda and public notice that I posted online this morning to John Schonfeldt,
Lori Henderson, and Cody Steffey
1:39: Daryl Koch called to express his opposition – specifically it’s a “Dumbass idea”

•
03-04-2022

03-14-2022

03-16-2022

03-17-2022
03-17-2022
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09:49: Lori Henderson called to request information about the case.
10:07: David Steffey called to request information and to state their disagreement with the
proposal.
2:03: Rick Ellis called for information and is leaning towards opposed
2:22: Cody Steffey called for information and is opposed and will be attending the meeting in
person.

•

10:15 – Talked to Steve Fitzgerald on the phone and he said him and his wife will be attending the
meeting in person and maybe their surveyor too, but he hadn’t talked to Steve yet.

•

9:45 -- Ed Lindsay called this morning to say he and his wife will be attending the 3/28 meeting in
person at the courthouse. I asked if he wanted to submit a letter and he said no, he’s part of a
group that is submitting a letter. I did not ask him about his opinion. I had someone at the window
at the time.

•

3:03 – Julie and James Durant will be attending the meeting in person, they live at 10321 78th St.
Also her Dad is a neighbor near the proposed Lakeland Estates and his name is Bill Kramer at 12055
Ferg Rd and he will be attending too.

•

9:23 – Bill Kramer 12055 Ferg stopped by. Will be attend. He said will be 10 to 15 more.

•

11:44 – Cindy Steffey and Husband Mahlon 9541 118th – will both attend.

